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Category A: Confidentiality

	
	Questions
	Response

	1
	How does NASA intend to protect the confidentiality of sensitive site nomination information? 


	NASA has secured all Site Nomination proposals as A-76 competition sensitive data.  NASA HQ will only release that information provided by the Centers to be included in the Draft RFP.  The Partners will have sole responsibility for releasing any additional information.



	2
	How will NASA ensure that the proposals will be kept confidential and not shared with the other communities?
	In addition to the answer above, it is recommended that when releasing sensitive data, Partners have Offerors sign non-disclosure agreements.  

	
	
	


Category B: Industry Briefing

	
	Questions
	Response

	3
	When will the Industry Day be held?
	The Industry Day Briefing is scheduled for June 2-3, 2004, at the Double Tree Hotel, Tysons Corner, 7801 Leesburg Pike, Falls Church, VA. Additional information is attached.  



	4
	Will there be clear and concise guidance/rules governing the Industry Day?  Will the Centers be allowed to participate?

	See appendix page 13 for Industry Day objectives and agenda.

	
	
	


Category C: Site related questions 

	
	Questions
	Response

	
	Site Lease
	

	5
	Is NASA going to provide a letter that states that this is a long-term lease agreement subject to annual appropriations approval?
 
	The draft RFP will clearly state the duration of the lease necessary to satisfy potential OMB scoring issues.  Yes, the lease must state that each successive year is contingent upon the availability of appropriations and affirmative renewal by NASA. 



	6
	Who will negotiate and sign the lease for the Interim facilities? 
	The Offeror shall provide an interim site to house the NSSC during construction of and prior to occupancy of the long-term facility. The complete costs and logistics associated with the interim site are to be proposed by the successful Offeror. It is expected that the interim site be all-inclusive (turn-key).



	7
	Who will negotiate and sign the lease for the long-term facilities?
	NASA will enter into a lease with the Lessor. NASA and its contractor (Staubach) will work with the six Centers and their partners to document the standard lease business terms that will be acceptable to NASA and consistent with pertinent federal regulations. 



	8
	Given NASA will be furnishing the permanent facility as GFE, will NASA provide developers space requirements and layout preferences or will the Offerors be tasked to do this?  Will this be an element of the Offerors technical proposal?

	Yes, NASA will provide developers space requirements and layout preferences for inherently governmental personnel, service provider personnel, and other non-service provider support contractors (i.e.; Agency Seat Management support, security, mail services, etc.).

No, this is not an element of the technical proposal. 


	9
	What scope of support is being requested by NSSC from the Center with regard to negotiating/finalizing the lease?

	None—at this time, request has been retracted.



	10
	Are there any prohibitions against giving Offerors part ownership in the facility? What if MEO?

	NASA cannot dictate or prevent independent business deals between third parties.  The MEO cannot have an ownership interest.



	
	Questions
	Response

	
	Proposal Modification
	

	11
	Will communities/centers be allowed to modify their proposals as they were presented on January 30, 2004?

· If not, how will we know that no modifications are made?

· If so, how can they be modified?
	Yes, Centers/Partners are allowed to modify their proposal costs and associated incentives. 

Costs associated with the lease would be constrained by the updated process that was developed as a result of Center visits. That process for negotiating lease agreements is attached to this document.

In general the proposed location and facility cannot be modified without prior approval from the Agency.



	12
	Are contractors limited to the use of the sites proposed by the Centers?  


	Yes, only the six approved NASA sites will be considered.



	13
	Can site nomination proposals be frozen in place?  At least the facility “deal” frozen in place?



	It was determined that it is in the best interest of NASA and US Taxpayers to allow adjustments be made to the original site nominations.



	14
	Will/or can the original site location and facility requirements be included in the RFP?  


	Still under consideration. 



	15
	Is there a possibility that the Centers/Partners can be de-briefed on the strength and/or weaknesses of their original site nomination proposals?  


	Yes, a written debrief is in development and will be provided to the Center POCs by the week of May 24, 2004.  However, these debriefs relate only to the original nomination guidelines and have no bearing on evaluation of proposals under the RFP.

	16
	Can current proposals be modified to include additional incentives such as state-supported training funds?


	Yes

	17
	Can current proposals be modified in consultation with the Offerors?   
	Yes, consultation between Offerors and Partners only.



	
	Questions
	Response

	
	Proposal Modification
	

	18
	Are there any restrictions on incentives offered to the project?  That is, could additional services be added to the proposal? 


	No, there are no restrictions on incentives.

	19
	Will additional updates or amended material be accepted for inclusion in the final RFP based upon the site’s review of comments and questions from the public comment period on the draft RFP?  Must the entire update be completed and submitted by May 7, 2004.


	Updates are required for release with the draft RFP but NASA will accept additional updates for release with the final RFP in July 2004. After release of the final RFP information may not be altered.



	20
	Is NASA firm that one and only one site can be proposed by each offeror and that only one of the current six sites may be submitted, regardless of industry comments subsequent to the draft RFP?


	Yes

	21
	Can we change site location if we think we can locate it somewhere else to lower costs?  


	No.  NASA has already evaluated and found each site acceptable for NASA’s needs based on the current location.

	22
	Will the Centers be sharing the previously submitted NSSC Site Nomination reports with the Offerors, or will this be handled by the Agency?  Can current documentation be shared with the Offerors?
	NASA Headquarters will only release site description information provided by Centers/Partners in the RFP.  Partners can release whatever information they desire or believe necessary to potential Offerors.



	23
	Please explain what is meant by “contractors will be better able to ‘capitalize’ certain site related discriminators”,
	Reference Deputy Administrator Gregory Letter to Center Directors dated April 5, 2004.  “These discriminators include, the relative labor rates, local and state taxes, and worker compensation rates, lifestyle, and community.” This is not intended to be an all inclusive list of potential discriminators.



	24
	What temporary facility arrangements/lease provisions are communities expected to provide on May 7?

	None, the interim facility is the responsibility of the Offeror. If a center has a potential interim facility it must make that facility available to all Offerors. Partners may discuss interim facilities with Offerors at their discretion. 

	
	Questions
	Response

	
	Site discriminators
	

	25
	What is the time-frame for the new facility to be ready? Can the construction of the new facility be extended 18 – 20 months?


	NASA anticipates that it will take up to 20 months from contract award for the Long-term Facility to be constructed and activated.



	26
	What kind of “commitment” will be necessary for an “interim facility”?  Would the space necessarily need to be “Class A”?  Within what geographic area would the facility have to be (i.e., how far from the final site?)?


	Interim Facility requirements will be included in the draft RFP.   No, the space does not have to be Class A.  The interim facility will have to be in the commutable distance of the Long-term Facility.  



	27
	Can the interim facility be used as a permanent facility?  


	No.

	
	
	


Category E: MEO

	
	Questions
	Response

	28
	Will the federal government be a bidder?  If so, how will they determine which site to select?

	Yes, the federal government will submit an offer to fulfill this requirement. The NASA team, named the QUESTeam, led by the Agency Tender Official, Lisa May, will establish a technical approach to fulfilling the requirements of the RFP.  Like any Offeror, the QUESTeam will determine which site best fits its technical approach.  They have sole responsibility and authority for choosing which site to include in their proposal. Additionally, OMB Circular A-76, allows for other government agencies to submit a proposal.  At this time, NASA has not received any indication that it will receive a proposal from another government agency.  

 

	29
	How and when can we engage the potential A-76 Offerors including the MEO team and sell them our site?

	Partners may contact any Offeror to discuss their site nomination.  Industry Day provides an initial forum for Partners and Offerors to meet.  This does not preclude Partners from hosting their own local industry briefings.  However, Partner Industry Briefings shall be coordinated through the NSSC Contracting Officer, for publication on the Federal Business Opportunities website. Additionally Partners are encouraged to solicit potential Offerors to contact them for more information by posting a notice to the Federal Business Opportunities website.

	30
	What schedule will the MEO be following for site selection?

	The MEO schedule for site selection is at their discretion.  All Offerors must submit a site location by the proposal due date September 2004.  



	31
	How should Centers relate to the MEO/Private Offerors?.  Are there clearly defined boundaries?  
	Centers provide Offerors including the MEO minor clarification but must document the Q&A and forward to the NSSC Contracting Officer.   Centers may exchange information with the Partners, but they shall not participate, attend, lead, suggest or concur with any course of negotiation.

	
	
	


Category F: Procurement

	
	Questions
	Response

	32
	Who is on the SEB?


	NASA does not release this information.  



	33
	Can someone protest based on a particular site not being chosen?
	No, since a site partner is not an Offeror proposing to perform all the services required by the RFP, it is not eligible to receive the contract award and therefore does not have standing to file a protest.



	34
	Under the new guidance, will the original criteria for space be maintained?  Will NASA be looking for a “Best Value” approach considering all of the cost and non-cost factors (i.e., travel, regional access, national access, labor market and quality of life) or will wages be the driving factor in deciding where to place the facility?


	No, the original site nomination criteria will not be used.  The criteria that will be released in the RFP will be for the total requirement and will not be focused on the acceptability of a given site.  NASA has evaluated the six site nominations and determined that they all exceeded requirements.  The criteria in the RFP will be focused on the Offerors understanding requirements, technical approach, management approach, personnel (staffing/retention) and compensation, safety and health, small disadvantaged business participation and cost.  Total cost including costs relative to the site will be evaluated.

This is a best value procurement.



	35
	Are personnel costs still part of the consideration?  It would appear that they are gone?  Are they being handled separately (i.e., outside the scope of the site location)?


	Staffing of the approximately 160 inherently governmental positions are not a part of the A-76 competition.  Personnel/staffing approach, costs, etc. to provide the services identified in the performance work statement are now the responsibility of the Offeror.



	36
	Can Partners modify their proposals for each Offeror, or are they limited to one proposal that each Offeror must use?


	It is possible for Partners to negotiate different deals/arrangements with each Offeror.



	37
	How does the Agency sort out potential Offerors and narrow the list? 

	NASA has no legal authority to restrict any particular Offerors from competing for the NSSC contract and cannot pre-suppose which interested parties will choose to submit proposals.



	
	Questions
	Response

	38
	Cost/technical tradeoff – how we will do it in draft RFP?
	At a minimum, the draft RFP will state the relative importance (weighting) among the evaluation factors.  When tradeoffs are made between these factors, the rationale for these tradeoffs must be documented in the official record.  As an example, if the Agency selected other than the lowest priced offer, the perceived benefits of the higher priced proposal would need to merit the additional cost, and the rationale for this trade-off would be included in the source selection documentation.  The decisions to make tradeoffs of this type are made by the Agency Source Selection Authority.  A trade-off decision would be based on the entire proposal, not the site by itself.



	39
	Why the restrictions on Centers working with partners to negotiate?  

	Centers shall not participate in negotiations between the Partners and Offerors due to procurement integrity issues. There is an inherent conflict in NASA Centers creating a proposal with the partners and Offerors that will be submitted back to NASA for evaluation. 

The Agency cannot assist Offerors in preparing proposals, and if the Agency provides different information to different Offerors it may create an unfair competitive advantage for some Offerors, which is grounds for a protest.



	40
	What information should be included in site data provided to all Offerors and RFP?



	The draft RFP will include the Technical Description of the site/facility, related graphics, and Center/Partner points-of-contact. Partners will need to provide “sensitive data” regarding cost, incentives, etc. to the Offerors.



	
	
	


Category G: Roles and Responsibilities

	
	Questions
	Response

	41
	Is there going to be a letter from the NSSC CO on what the Rules of Engagement are for Center POC’s?   


	Yes, see below



	42
	What are the Roles and Responsibilities of the Centers  

POC’s, Offerors, Headquarters/NSSC Team, CO, SEB Chair, Executive Director 


	NASA Center POC-  (Langley, Kennedy, Glenn, Marshall, Stennis, and Johnson)

· Works with NSSC Contracting Officer as required.

· Serves as the focal point for Q/A between the Center and Offerors.

· Provides a copy to the Contracting Officer of any information released by the Center regarding site Provides the same information to all Offerors

· Free to have discussions with partners as long as they do not appear to be participating, leading, suggesting, or concurring with a course of negotiation.

Partner POC

· Free to negotiate with the offerors Serves as the focal point for site information to Offerors.

· Free to contact Contracting Officer.

Offerors

· Can contact partners regarding site information.

· Can seek negotiation opportunities with Partners process for site selection and proposes one site in their proposal.

ATO/MEO Team

· All Offeror roles apply to ATO

Contracting Officer 

· Focal point for Centers to clarify RFP requirements

· Answer inquiries about procedures and processes related to the NSSC acquisition and site selection.

SEB Chair

· Leads Source Evaluation Board

Executive Director

· Source Selection Authority for this procurement



	
	
	


Category H: Staubach

	
	Questions
	Response

	43
	 Is Staubach available for consultation immediately?  Who is their POC?

	Yes, Staubach is available immediately.
Kurt Haglund/The Staubach Company/202-639-4556 Office/301-452-3205 Cell
email: kurt.haglund@staubach.com


	
	
	


Category I: Other

	
	Questions
	Response

	44
	Will the delay in the site selection decision impact any other NSSC milestones (employment levels, operational time line goals)?  


	NSSC will open Oct 2005



	45
	Who can submit proposals?


	Any organization may submit a proposal to perform all the NSSC services required in the RFP.  If a subsidiary is a separate legal entity, making its own commitment and capable to perform the requirements if selected, it may submit its own proposal.



	46
	Is there enough time in the process for Offerors to team with Partners?

	Yes, Offerors should be cognizant of the schedule requirements

	47
	How does or will the Rural Development Act (Designation) affect the proposal?
	All Site Nomination proposals satisfied the requirements of the RDA in their 1/30/04 proposal submission



	
	
	


Category J: Publishing Q/A

	
	Questions
	Response

	48
	Can we get a copy of the questions and answers from the other centers?


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
	Yes, submitted Q&A will be posted to Federal Business Opportunities website and the NSSC website on a non-attribution basis.



	
	
	


NSSC Industry Day 

June 2 - 3, 2004

Location: 

Double Tree Hotel, Tysons Corner

7801 Leesburg Pike

Falls Church, VA 22043

703-893-1340

Objective: 

To present the requirements for the NSSC procurement, and provide a forum for prospective Offerors to gather information from the six potential NSSC sites. 

Overview:

Day one consists of introductory remarks and a presentation of RFP requirements followed by 45 minute presentations delivered by each of the six proposed sites. Agenda appears on page 14. 

Criteria for presentations: 

· Centers can attend and participate in the presentation at public forums on day one
· At a minimum presenters should elaborate on their RFP insert
· Thirty minutes should be allocated to the presentation, 15 minutes to Q/A
Day two is break out sessions only; each site will have representatives available to meet with Offerors. Centers are excluded from the breakout sessions.

Registration:

Registration contact for Offerors:

Bonnie Cleary

1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 400

Washington, DC  20006

Phone:  (202)429-8426

e-mail: bonnie.cleary@nasa.gov
Offerors please provide the following information by May 26, 2004:

· Company name and address

· Attendee names and positions (limit four per Offeror; limit 10 for Partners and Center reps)

· Indicate if Prime Offeror or sub-contractor 

Agenda

June 2, 2004

8:00 – 8:15 Opening remarks – Rick Arbuthnot, Executive Director NSSC

8:15 – 9:45 Acquisition approach/review/Q&A – Jim Becker

10:00 – 10:45 Houston, TX 

11:00 – 11:45 Hampton Roads, VA

1:00 – 1:45 Orlando, FL

2:00 – 2:45 Cleveland, Ohio

3:00 – 3:45 Stennis, MS

4:00 – 4:45 Huntsville, AL 

4:45 Summary/Wrap up 

June 3, 2004

8:00 – 5:00 Break out sessions, one room available per site

9:30 – 11:00 a.m. NSSC leadership will be available in a break room to meet with Centers to discuss the NSSC and answer questions.

5/18/2004


